
 

JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF GUAM 
REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2022 | 12:00 PM 
GUAM JUDICIAL CENTER 

AND VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 
  

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
 
II. PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETING:   December 14, 2022 
                     December 19, 2022  
     
III. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
IV. READING AND DISPOSAL OF MINUTES:   August 17, 2022 Executive Session  

        October 20, 2022 Regular Meeting 
        October 20, 2022 Executive Session  

        
V. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Judiciary FY23 Remittances Pursuant to P.L. 36-107 
B. Update on the Judiciary’s Response to COVID-19      
C. Update on Capital Improvement Projects    

i. BOG Loan Drawdown Update (For Informational Purposes)  
D. Acquisition of Properties (For Informational Purposes)  
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Certificates of Commendation (R. Ceribo, J. Aguon, A. Meno)  
B.   JC Resolution Relative to Ratifying JC Resolution 22-024 Memorializing the   
      Passing of Chief Justice Arthur Ngiraklsong 
C.  Proposed Amendment to the Superior Court Interim Traffic Court Rules 
D.  Notice of the Next Meeting (Thursday, January 19, 2022)  

 
VII. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT  

A. Guam Bar Association – President’s Report 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

A. Ongoing Litigation 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

 



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST • W
EDNESDAY, DECEM

BER 14, 2022

11

The Judicial Council of Guam will conduct its monthly meeting on Wednesday, December 21, at 12 
Noon in the Guam Judicial Center, 120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagåtña, by videoconference. 
A monitor will be set up for any members of the public who would like to observe and offer comments..
The meeting will also be streamed live on the Judiciary of Guam YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfnFCWwIlp99fAeh9zi4Q4g/featured
The following agenda is available on the Judiciary of Guam website:
http://www.guamsupremecourt.com/Judicial-Council/Judicial-Council-of-Guam.asp
I.   CALL TO ORDER
II.  PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETING:  December 14 & 19, 2022
III. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
IV. READING AND DISPOSAL OF MINUTES:  

August 17, 2022 Executive Session
October 20, 2022 Regular Meeting
October 20, 2022 Executive Session

V.  OLD BUSINESS
    A. Judiciary FY22 Remittances Pursuant to P.L. 36-54
        B. Update on the Judiciary’s Response to COVID-19
        C. Update on Capital Improvement Projects
 i. BOG Loan Drawdown Update (For Informational Purposes)
VI. NEW BUSINESS
    A. Certificates of Commendation (R. Ceribo, J. Aguon, A. Meno)
        B. JC Resolution Relative to Ratifying JC Resolution 22-024 Memorializing the Passing of 
            Chief Justice Arthur Ngiraklsong
        C. Proposed Amendment to the Superior Court Interim Traffic Court Rules
        D. Notice of the Next Meeting (Thursday, January 19, 2022)
VII. COMMUNICATIONS
VIII.  PUBLIC COMMENT
    A.   Guam Bar Association – President’s Report
IX.  EXECUTIVE SESSION
    A.  Ongoing Litigation 
X.   ADJOURNMENT

Any person(s) needing special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services, please contact the  
                            Administrator of the Courts at 671-475-3544, or Petrina M. Ula at 671-475-3413.              

This ad was paid for with Government of Guam funds. 
CHIEF JUSTICE F. PHILIP CARBULLIDO

Chairman

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING and EXECUTIVE SESSION

JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF GUAM
Suite 300 Guam Judicial Center

120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagåtña, Guam 96910-5174
Tel: (671) 475-3413   Fax: (671) 475-3140

www.guamcourts.org

INVITATION FOR BID

GUAM MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDÅT ESPETÅT MIMURIÅT GUÅHAN

850 Gov. Carlos Camacho Road
Tamuning, Guam 96913

GMHA IFB No. 002-2023: CONSTRUCTION SERVICES REQUIRED TO
COMPLETE CONTRACT PACKAGE 1B OF Z-WING DEMOLISHMENT

Submission Due:    9:00 a.m. ChST, Wednesday, December 28, 2022 in the
                                       GMHA Materials Management Department

Opening Time:        9:30 a .m. ChST, Wednesday, December 28, 2022 in the
                                      GMHA Facility Maintenance Conference Room

**Site Visit for assessment is scheduled for 09:30 a.m. CST, Monday, December 19, 2022 at the Guam 
Memorial Hospital Authority. All Covid-19 precautions must be followed. All bidders are requested to be present. All 
questions must be submitted in writing no later than Wednesday, december 21, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. CST.

All bids must be sealed, submitted with one (1) original and one (1) duplicate and received by the Materials 
Management Department by the due date of December 28, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. Chamorro Standard Time. Bidding 
documents are available until the submission date at the same department for a non-refundable fee of $20.00 per 
set, or can be downloaded from the GMHA website. Funding is made available under the GMHA General Funds.

All interested firms must register with the GMHA Materials Management Department to participate in the bid. 
Please register online at www.gmha.org for assistance you may call (671)647-2165. Registration is required to 
ensure that all Amendments or Notices are communicated to all bidders throughout the  bid process. GMHA shall 
not be liable for failure to provide notice to any party that did not register contact information with GMHA.

For more information, please visit our public information page at www.gmha.org. 

/s/ Lillian Perez-Posadas, RN, MN
Hospital Administrator/CEO

This advertisement was paid for with GMHA Operational funds.

20 – TILE SETTER WITH 1 YEAR EXPERIENCE             $25.64 PER HOUR*

Duties: Applies hard tile, stone, and comparable materials to floors, walls, ceilings,    
and/ or decks. Studies blueprints and/or examines surface to be covered to determine 
amount of material needed. Determines and implements the best layout to achieve a 
desired pattern. Measures and marks surfaces to be tiled, following blueprints. Levels 
concrete and cuts and shapes tile to fit. Mixes, applies, and spreads plaster, concrete, 
mortar, cement, mastic, glue or other adhesives to form a bed for the tiles. Aligns and 
straightens tile using levels, squares, and straightedges.  Applies mortar to tile back, 
position the tile, and press or tap with trowel handle to affix tile to base. Finish and dress 
the joints and wipe excess grout from between tiles, using damp sponge. 

*Special Wage Rate: Work to be performed on DPRI-funded projects will be paid no less than the indicated wage 
rate, but may be paid more where special Davis-Bacon Act rates apply.

Must be able to obtain military base access. Off-island hires must complete a health 
screening prior to working in Guam.

Benefits: Roundtrip airfare for off-island hire; Food and lodging @ $80.00 per week; 
Local transportation from employer’s designated lodging facility to/from jobsite; and 
Employer/employee–paid commercial medical insurance provided.

The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The 
recruitment associated with this job offer is closely monitored by the Department of Labor. 
Qualified, available and willing U.S. workers are highly encouraged to apply.  Should you 
qualify for the job and are not hired, you may appeal with the Department of Labor who will 
independently review matter.

Apply in person at the American Job Center
414 W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building Hagatna, Guam
Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword: 2023-010

AVAILABLE JOBS FOR ELIGIBLE U.S. WORKERS

In print or online we have you covered at The Guam Daily Post!
email at krista@postguam.com for inquiries.

Need to get your
message out there?
Our sales team has new opportunities for you!



GU
AM

 D
AI

LY
 P

O
ST

 •
 M

ON
DA

Y, 
DE

CE
M

BE
R 

19
, 2

02
2

20

OBITUARIES
JOSE 

DUENAS 
CHARGUALAF

Jose “Jose 'Tongue'” 
Duenas Chargualaf, 

Dec. 13 at the age 

-

DANNY LEON 
GUERRERO 

SAN NICOLAS
-

at the age of 57. Mass 

ROSITA TAITANO 
AGUON

-

at the age of 85. 

BERNIE V. 
MARANAN

-

EMELIA S. 
QUINATA

LIBERTA 
LEELBIY

Dec. 5 at the age of 

-

CLASSIFIEDS & OBITUARIES

LOOKING TO HIRE
• OFFICE CLERK
• CHILDCARE PROVIDERS

Must enjoy working with children
Able to work flexible hours
Have reliable transportation

Have a high school diploma or beyond

Join our team!
CONTACT US VIA EMAIL AT
littlelearnersteam@gmail.com

or at (671) 735-5437

The Judicial Council of Guam will conduct its monthly meeting on Wednesday, December 21, at 12 
Noon in the Guam Judicial Center, 120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagåtña, by videoconference. 
A monitor will be set up for any members of the public who would like to observe and offer comments..
The meeting will also be streamed live on the Judiciary of Guam YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfnFCWwIlp99fAeh9zi4Q4g/featured
The following agenda is available on the Judiciary of Guam website:
http://www.guamsupremecourt.com/Judicial-Council/Judicial-Council-of-Guam.asp
I.   CALL TO ORDER
II.  PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETING:  December 14 & 19, 2022
III. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
IV. READING AND DISPOSAL OF MINUTES:  

August 17, 2022 Executive Session
October 20, 2022 Regular Meeting
October 20, 2022 Executive Session

V.  OLD BUSINESS
    A. Judiciary FY22 Remittances Pursuant to P.L. 36-54
        B. Update on the Judiciary’s Response to COVID-19
        C. Update on Capital Improvement Projects
 i. BOG Loan Drawdown Update (For Informational Purposes)
VI. NEW BUSINESS
    A. Certificates of Commendation (R. Ceribo, J. Aguon, A. Meno)
        B. JC Resolution Relative to Ratifying JC Resolution 22-024 Memorializing the Passing of 
            Chief Justice Arthur Ngiraklsong
        C. Proposed Amendment to the Superior Court Interim Traffic Court Rules
        D. Notice of the Next Meeting (Thursday, January 19, 2022)
VII. COMMUNICATIONS
VIII.  PUBLIC COMMENT
    A.   Guam Bar Association – President’s Report
IX.  EXECUTIVE SESSION
    A.  Ongoing Litigation 
X.   ADJOURNMENT

Any person(s) needing special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services, please contact the  
                            Administrator of the Courts at 671-475-3544, or Petrina M. Ula at 671-475-3413.              

This ad was paid for with Government of Guam funds. 
CHIEF JUSTICE F. PHILIP CARBULLIDO

Chairman

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING and EXECUTIVE SESSION

JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF GUAM
Suite 300 Guam Judicial Center

120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagåtña, Guam 96910-5174
Tel: (671) 475-3413   Fax: (671) 475-3140

www.guamcourts.org

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT FOR TEMPORARY POSITIONS

APPLY AT DANES CONSTRUCTION CORP BY CALLING 671-653-3637. 
REFERENCES REQUIRED UPON REQUEST.

17 – REINFORCING METAL WORKER                 $16.73/HR. (1 yr. exp.)

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE 
OF

ROMEO CHUA WHANG,
Decedent.

Probate Case No. PR0216-22

NOTICE OF HEARING 

THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU ARE NOT 
REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS YOU DESIRE.

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Jennifer Whang has 
filed a petition for: Petition for Letters of 
Administration.

2. The hearing on this Petition will be heard by online 
remote appearance on Wednesday, December 21, 
2022, at 9:30 a.m.

3. To attend or to participate in the hearing, go to 
https://guamcourts-org.zoom.us and enter Meeting 
ID: 864 4387 2213 and Passcode: JEMI. You may 
also call in for the hearing; you can call into the 
courtroom at 671-300-6703 at the designated 
hearing time. For connectivity issues, you may 
contact Eathan Cniz at (671) 475-3106 or email 
efcruz@guamcourts.org

Dated: November 17, 2022
 

DANIELLE T. ROSETE
Clerk of Court

/s/ Alice B. Mendoza
Courtroom/Chamber Clerk

LAW OFFICES 
CUNLIFFE & COOK
210 Archbishop Flores Street, Ste. 200
Hagåtña, GU 96910-5189
Telephone: (671) 472-1824
Telefax: (671) 472-2422





































BEFORE THE 2022 JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF GUAM 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-__  

RELATIVE TO RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM 

INTERIM TRAFFIC COURT RULES  

WHEREAS, the Interim Traffic Court Rules were adopted by the Supreme Court through Promulgation Order No. 14-
002-01 and amended with Promulgation Order Nos. 14-002-02 and 20-003-01; and

WHEREAS, the Superior Court Clerk of Court, who oversees the Traffic Violations Bureau explained the process for 
adjudicating citations filed with the Bureau under the current rules; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments would eliminate a step in the case processing before a judgment is entered and 
will also expand the authority of the Traffic Violations Bureau Clerk to issue a dismissal upon the death of 
a respondent; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments will procedurally improve the adjudication of citations; and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Court Clerk of Court informed the council members of a clerical error in the Interim Rules 
presented to Council on November 20, 2020, which error was corrected in the proposed amendments; and  

WHEREAS, the Superior Court Clerk of Court, has presented the proposed Amended Interim Traffic Court Rules 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, to the Judicial Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Court Clerk of Court has requested that the Judicial Council recommend that the Supreme 
Court of Guam, subject to notice and any public comment and under its rule making authority, approve the 
proposed Amended Interim Traffic Court Rules. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Judicial Council hereby transmits the proposed Amended Interim 
Traffic Court Rules, attached hereto as Exhibit A, to the Supreme Court of Guam and recommends approval of the 
amendments by the Supreme Court. 

DULY ADOPTED this ____ day of December, 2022 at a duly noticed meeting of the Judicial Council of Guam. 

____________________________________ 
F. PHILIP CARBULLIDO, Chairman

Dated: _______________________________ 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Petrina Ula, Executive Secretary 

Dated: ______________________________  



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM 

INTERIM TRAFFIC COURT RULES 
 

NOTE: Adopted as interim rules pursuant to Supreme Court of Guam Promulgation Order No. 14-002-01 (June 20, 
2014) and amended by Supreme Court of Guam Promulgation Order No. 20-003 (November 24, 2020). 

 
 
 
Rule 1.  Title. 
Rule 2.  Scope, Purpose and Construction. 
Rule 3.  Jurisdiction. 
Rule 4.  Definitions. 
Rule 5.  Traffic Violations Bureau. 
Rule 6.  Commencement of Action. 
Rule 7.  Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation. 
Rule 8.  Admission - Contest. 
Rule 9.  Failure to Appear - Order - Default.  
Rule 10. Contest - Trial - Evidence. 
Rule 11. Entry of Judgment.  
Rule 12. Dismissal. 
Rule 13. Repeat Offender - Penalties - Suspension. 
Rule 14. Retention of Counsel - Entry of Appearance. 
Rule 15. Appearance of the Attorney General not Required. 
Rule 16. Notice to Regulatory Agency. 
Rule 17. Amendment. 
Rule 18. Appeal. 
Rule 19. Enforcement of Judgment. 
Rule 20. Interim Rules and Effective Date. 
 
 



 
RULE 1. Title. 
 
These rules shall be known and cited as the Superior Court of Guam Traffic Court Rules. 
 
RULE 2.   Scope, Purpose and Construction. 
 

(a) Scope of Rules. These Rules govern the practice and procedure in the Traffic Court, a Division of the 
Superior Court of Guam for all cases involving civil violations within the jurisdiction of the Traffic Court. 

 
(b) Purpose and Construction. These rules are intended to provide for the just determination of all violations 

which fall within the jurisdiction of the Traffic Court, and to that end shall be construed to ensure simplicity, 
uniformity in procedure, fairness in administration and the elimination of unjustifiable expense and delay. 

 
RULE 3. Jurisdiction. 
 
The Traffic Court shall hear and determine violations under the following statutes: 
 

(a) 10 GCA Chapter 34 [animal control]; 
(b) 10 GCA Chapter 51, Article 2 [litter]; 
(c) 10 GCA Chapter 69 [boating]; 
(d) 10 GCA § 58111 [Fire Code] violations; 
(e) 10 GCA § 73110 [Fire Code] violations; 
(f) 10 GCA Chapter 90 [smoking]; 
(g) 16 GCA Chapter 5 [commercial motor vehicle]; 
(h) 16 GCA Chapters 3, 7, 9, 13, 19 and 26 [Vehicle Code] violations, and  any violation of the Vehicle Code 

committed by a minor sixteen (16) years or older [19 GCA § 5103(a)(4)]. 
(i) 5 GCA Chapters 60 and 63 [fish, game, forestry, and conservation] 
(j) 5 GCA Chapter 40 [mayors’ enforcement of sanitary and health laws] 
(k) 26 GARR Chapter 4, Article 28 [rules governing the enforcement of public health guidance and directives 

during the COVID-19 public health emergency] 
 
NOTE: Title 19 GCA § 5103(a)(4) removes from the jurisdiction of the Family Court any violation of the Vehicle Code committed by a person 
16 years or older.  Title 9 GCA § 67.401.2(b)(3) was effectively repealed by P.L. 35-0005:4 (April 4, 2019).  Title 26 GAR Chapter 4, Article 28 
was enacted by the Department of Public Health and Social Services pursuant to 10 GCA § 19802 and Executive order No. 2020-38.  DPHSS 
Announcement Nov. 19, 2020. 
 
RULE 4. Definitions. 
 

(a) Abuse. The unlawful use of a lawful process or the perversion of a process in order to obtain a result, which 
was not intended by the law to effect. 

 
(b) Apprehending Officer. Means any designated person employed by the Department of Parks & Recreation, 

the Department of Agriculture, the Guam Environmental Protection Agency, the Department of Public 
Health and Social Services, the Department of Public Works, all mayors and assistant mayors, and any 
peace officer. 

 
  SOURCE:  10 GCA § 51202(a) (2005). 
 

(c) Moving Violation. Any violation of the Motor Vehicle Code committed while a driver is operating a 
vehicle in motion, including any temporary or intermittent stop in the course of operating a vehicle in 
motion on any roadway or highway in Guam. 

 
(d) Non-moving Violation. Any parking or standing of a motor vehicle not in operation in violation of a 

statute, ordinance or regulation. 
 
(e) Non-traffic Violation. All other violations within the jurisdiction of the Traffic Court as defined in Rule 3 

including but not limited to violations prescribed under 9 GCA § 67.401.2 (b)(3); 10 GCA Chapters 34, 69, 
90; 10 GCA Chapter 51, Article 2; 10 GCA § 58111; 10 GCA § 73111; and 26 GARR Chapter 4 Article 
28. 

 
(f) Peace Officer.  The same meaning as provided for in 8 GCA § 5.55. 
 
(g) Respondent. The person cited with a violation under the jurisdiction of the Traffic Court. 
 
(h) Traffic Court Judicial Officer. A judge, judge pro tempore, magistrate judge, or referee appointed by the 

Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of Guam to preside over Traffic Court cases. 
 
(i) Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation. A complaint and citation issued for a violation within the 

jurisdiction of the Traffic Court under Rule 3, using the General Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation 
form, including (but not limited to) complaints and citations for litter, boating and smoking. 

 



 
(j) Violation. Any infraction under the jurisdiction of the Traffic Court punishable by a civil fine. 

 
RULE 5.  Traffic Violations Bureau. 

 
There is hereby established a Traffic Violations Bureau (“TVB”) within the Superior Court of Guam at various locations. 
The TVB Clerk shall be under the general supervision of the Clerk of Court. The TVB Clerk, or assigned Deputy Clerk(s), 
shall have authority to accept a respondent’s entry of appearance, waiver of trial, admission or denial of liability, payment 
of fines, fees, and court costs, sign orders to appear and Orders to Show Cause pursuant to Rule 9(a) and (b) below, set 
trial dates and assess fines, fees, and court costs in accordance with the schedule of fees approved by the Judicial Council, 
on any violation for which an admission has been entered. 

 
RULE 6.  Commencement of Action. 
 
An action is commenced when a Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation (“GUCC”) is issued by any peace officer or 
apprehending officer. The GUCC may also be in electronic format. The reverse side of the GUCC, except for electronic 
citations, shall provide for recording of the judgment. Electronic citations do not need to meet the formatting requirements 
but must otherwise provide the same information as a hard copy GUCC. The format of the GUCC for each scope of 
jurisdiction in Rule 3 shall be approved by the Clerk of Court. 
 
RULE 7.  Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation. 
 

(a) Filing the GUCC. The issuing agency or apprehending officer shall file the original GUCC with, or transmit 
the electronic citations to the TVB on or before the appearance date. 

 
(b) Grounds for Dismissal by TVB Clerk. The following causes may be grounds for administrative dismissal 

of the GUCC by the TVB Clerk: 
 

(1) Failure to cite a statute, or citing an incorrect statute; 
 
(2) Upon a first violation of the provisions of the Accessible Parking statute as contained in 16 GCA 

§§ 3401.1(b)(1) or (c), or 3401(d), provided the respondent files a Declaration stating he/she is a 
disabled person under 16 GCA § 7120.1(a)(2), and the person responsible for the violation, or was 
with the person responsible at the time the GUCC was issued; or 

 
(3) The issuing agency or apprehending officer requests in writing that the original GUCC be voided 

before filing the citation. 
 
(4) Proof of respondent’s death is provided to the TVB Clerk. 

 
(c) Accounting of GUCCs Issued. The TVB shall be responsible for and reconcile all GUCCs filed or received. 

Each Director or agency head shall be held accountable for any and all GUCCs released to their department 
for use, and shall report to the TVB any unused, lost, or missing UCCs on an annual basis. 

 
RULE 8.  Admission - Contest. 
 

(a) Admission. A respondent, or his/her designee with written authorization, may enter an admission to a 
violation by submitting or delivering the amount of the fine plus court costs, together with the signature by 
the respondent or designee on the GUCC and on a waiver of trial, to the TVB Clerk at any Traffic Court 
location, or by mailing the same to the Superior Court of Guam Traffic Violation Bureau, 120 West O’Brien 
Drive, Hagåtña, Guam 96910, or by any other approved electronic means of payment. Judgment shall be 
entered against the respondent after an admission imposing applicable fines and court costs, and there shall 
be no right to appeal. 

 
(b) Contest. A contest to the validity or regularity of a violation or process must be made at the first appearance. 

A designee may enter a contest, however the respondent or respondent’s counsel must personally appear 
to contest the violation. A hearing to contest the violation shall be scheduled pursuant to Rule 11. 

 
RULE 9.  Failure to Appear - Order - Default. 
 

(a) First Appearance. If the respondent fails to appear or otherwise answer the violation on or before the first 
appearance date, an Order to Appear shall be issued by mail ordering the respondent to appear and answer 
to the violation not later than thirty (30) days from the date of mailing of the Order to Appear. 

 
(b) Order to Show Cause. If the respondent fails to appear or otherwise answer the violation within thirty (30) 

days from the mailing of the Order to Appear, an Order to Show Cause (“OSC”) shall be issued ordering 
the respondent to appear at a hearing before the Traffic Court Judicial Officer. 

 
(c) Entry of Default. If the respondent is served with the OSC and fails to appear at the Order  to  Show  Cause  

hearing,  a  default  judgment  may  be  entered  against  the  respondent imposing maximum fines and 
court costs, plus legal interest of 6%. The Traffic Court Judicial Officer may issue further orders including 



 
but not limited to an order for a warrant of arrest, an Alias Order to Appear, or an Alias OSC. 

 
(b) Failure to Answer.  If the respondent fails to appear and answer to the violation within thirty (30) days from 

the mailing of the Order to Appear a default judgment may be entered against the respondent imposing 
maximum fines and court costs, plus legal interest of 6%. The Traffic Court Judicial Officer may issue 
further orders including but not limited to a warrant of arrest, an Alias Order to Appear, or an Order to 
Show Cause. 

 
RULE 10.  Contest - Trial - Evidence. 
 

(a) Scheduling a Hearing. All contests shall be heard before the Traffic Court Judicial Officer. The TVB 
Clerk shall schedule a hearing on a contest on the next available date and time. The date set for hearing 
shall be set not earlier than twenty (20) days, and not later than thirty (30) days from the date of the 
respondent’s request to contest the violation. A hearing in cases involving an accident resulting in personal 
injury shall be set no earlier than sixty (60) days and not later than ninety (90) days from the date of the 
respondent’s request to contest the violation. These dates may be extended for good cause. 

 
(b) Respondent to Appear Mandatory. The respondent must appear at the hearing to contest the violation. 

No hearing will proceed in the absence of the respondent. Failure of the respondent to appear at the hearing 
shall be grounds for entry of a default judgment. 

 
(c) Service of Process. Notice of the hearing shall be served by the Superior Court Marshal to the Guam Police 

Department, Office of the Chief of Police, or appropriate regulatory agency. A respondent is entitled to 
have process issued by the Traffic Court. If the respondent requests for marshal service, the respondent 
must pay the marshal’s fee. 

 
(d) Right to Be Heard. All witnesses shall be heard prior to judgment and disposition. 
 
(e) Evidence. The Rules of Evidence do not apply in Traffic Court hearings. 
 
(f) No Jury Trial. There is no right to a jury trial in Traffic Court. Traffic Court is not a court of record, and 

therefore, no verbatim record of proceedings is required. 
 
RULE 11.  Entry of Judgment. A Judgment may be entered when: 
 

(a) A respondent admits to the violation; 
 
(b) The Traffic Court Judicial Officer has determined after a hearing that the respondent committed a violation; 

or 
 
(c) A respondent fails to appear after being served an Order to Show Cause or otherwise answer the violation 

within thirty (30) days from the mailing of the Order to Appear or has failed to appear at trial. 
 

RULE 12. Dismissal. 
 

(a) After Hearing. The GUCC shall be dismissed if the Traffic Court Judicial Officer has determined after a 
hearing that the respondent did not commit the violation. 

 
(b) Peace Officer Not Appearing. Failure of any peace officer or apprehending officer to appear at trial in order 

to prove the violation shall be grounds for dismissal. 
 
RULE 13.  Repeat Offender - Penalties - Suspension. 
 

(a) Second Judgment within Any 12 Months. The amount of fines to be imposed on a second judgment for 
the same or separate violation under the Vehicle Code, charged within any twelve (12) month period, shall 
be an additional fifty percent (50%) of the original fine for the current violation. 

 
(b) Third Judgment within Any 12 Months. The amount of fines to be imposed for a third judgment for the 

same or separate violation under the Vehicle Code, charged within any twelve (12) month period, shall be 
an additional seventy-five percent (75%) of the original fine for the current violation. 

 
(c) Suspension of Driver’s License. The Traffic Court Judicial Officer may suspend the driver’s license of a 

person liable for violating any provision related to a moving violation as provided in 16 GCA § 3111 for a 
period of thirty (30) days for a first violation, sixty (60) days for a second moving violation, and for a period 
not to exceed six (6) months for any subsequent violation. The TVB Clerk or designee shall take possession 
of the license, and retain it for the period of suspension. 

 
(d) Disabled Parking. Upon a second violation, the respondent shall be required to appear and answer under 

oath before the Traffic Court Judicial Officer as to the circumstances giving rise to the repeat violation, and 
if found in the discretion of the Traffic Court Judicial Officer to have abused the privileges of disabled 



 
parking, shall be fined not less than three hundred dollars ($300.00) and not more than five hundred dollars 
($500.00). If no abuse is found the violation shall be dismissed with prejudice. 

 
SOURCE: 16 GCA § 3111 (2005); 16 GCA § 3401.1(d) (2005). 

 
RULE 14.  Retention of Counsel - Entry of Appearance. 
 
A respondent may obtain an attorney to represent him/her during the pendency of the violation before the Traffic Court.  
The attorney must file an entry of appearance with the TVB. 
 
RULE 15.  Appearance of the Attorney General not Required. 
 
The Attorney General will not be required to appear to prosecute violations, and the matter may proceed with the peace 
officer or apprehending officer, or other representative of the citing agency. 

 
RULE 16.  Notice to Regulatory Agency. 
 
Upon entry of a judgment, the TVB Clerk shall report through electronic means, any record of the violation to the Guam 
Police Department and the Department of Revenue & Taxation, or other appropriate regulatory agency. 

 
RULE 17. Amendment. 
 
The Traffic Court Judicial Officer may permit to be amended any process or pleading or any omission or defect therein, 
or for any variance between the complaint and the evidence adduced at the trial. If the respondent is substantially 
prejudiced in the presentation of his or her case as a result of the amendment, the Traffic Court Judicial Officer shall recess 
the hearing to some future time, upon such terms as are just and proper. 

 
RULE 18. Appeal. 
 

(a) Trial Court. The Superior Court shall have appellate jurisdiction to review any judgment rendered before 
the Traffic Court Judicial Officer. An appeal shall be taken within five (5) business days after the judgment 
is entered by filing a written notice of appeal and paying a filing fee in the same amount as that required 
for the filing of a civil case. 

 
(b) Admission by Respondent. No appeal can be taken from a judgment entered by admission of the 

respondent. 
 
(c) De Novo. Upon appeal by the respondent the case shall be tried on the merits de novo. 

 
SOURCE:  7 GCA § 4102 (2005); 8 GCA §1.09(b) (2005). 
 
RULE 19.   Enforcement of Judgment. 
 
The Administrator of the Courts (“AOC”), or the AOC’s designee may undertake collection measures and efforts for fines, 
fees, and court costs more than sixty (60) days outstanding. 
 
RULE 20.  Interim Rules and Effective Date. 
 
These Rules are interim rules to be in effect until permanent rules are promulgated by the Supreme Court of Guam. These 
rules shall take effect upon promulgation by the Supreme Court and shall remain in effect until adoption of the permanent 
rules or further order of the Supreme Court. 
 
 



	 	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	

	
	
December	21,	2022	

	
	
TO:	 	 JUDICIAL	COUNCIL	MEMBERS	 	
	
FROM:	 DESIGNATED	STAFF	ATTORNEY	
	
SUBJECT:	 Recommendation	for	Executive	Session	to	Discuss	Pending	Litigation	

at	the	Judicial	Council	Regular	Meeting	of	December	21,	2022	
	 	 	
Pursuant	 to	 5	 GCA	 §	 8111(c)(1),	 I	 recommend	 that	 the	 Judicial	 Council	 hold	 an	
executive	 session	 at	 its	 regular	meeting	 scheduled	 for	December	21,	 2022	 for	 the	
limited	purpose	of	discussing	the	following	ongoing	legal	matters:	
	

 CV0342‐22,	 Gumataotao	 v.	 Judicial	 Branch:	 Complaint	 filed	 by	 Gary	 W.F.	
Gumataotao	 in	 the	 Superior	 Court	 of	 Guam	 on	 June	 10,	 2022,	 seeking	
damages	for	an	alleged	slip	and	fall.	

 Case	 1:22‐cv‐00014,	 Philips	 v.	 Guam	 Courts:	 Complaint	 filed	 by	 Dr.	 Sherif	
Philips	 in	 the	 District	 Court	 of	 Guam	 on	 June	 16,	 2022,	 seeking	 review	 of	
cases	filed	in	the	Superior	and	Supreme	Courts	of	Guam.		

 EEO	Matter.	
	
Further	pursuant	 to	Section	8111(c)(1),	 an	affirmative	vote	of	 the	 Judicial	Council	
will	be	necessary	to	hold	this	executive	session.	
	
Submitted	for	your	consideration.	
	
	
_____________________________________________	
Andrew	S.	Quenga,	Designated	Staff	Attorney	
Deputy	Administrator	of	the	Courts	
	
	
CC:	 Kristina	L.	Baird,	Administrator	of	the	Courts	
	 Daniel	Mensching,	Staff	Attorney	
	 	
	
	


	Binder1
	.December 21, 2022 Judicial Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
	August 17, 2022 Judicial Council Executive Session minutes signed
	II. Notice of the December 21, 2022 Judicial Council Meeting
	JOG 121922 COMPLETE
	JOG -121422 COMPLETE

	IX. A. Request for Executive Session (December 2022)
	October 20, 2022 Judicial Council Executive Session minutes signed
	October 20, 2022 Judicial Council Regular Meeting minutes signed
	Resolution, JC22- Relative to Ratifying JC22-024 Memorializing the Passing of Chief Justice Arthur Ngrikalsong
	VI. A. a. Certificate of Commendation R. Ceribo 
	VI. A. b. Certificate of Commendation J. Aguon 
	VI. A. c. Certificate of Commendation A. Meno 
	VI. B. i. Resolution, JC22-024 Re Memorializing the Passing of Chief Justice Ngiraklsong final signed

	VI. C. Resolution, JC22- Relative to Amended Traffic Court Rules1
	Resolution, JC22- Relative to Amended Traffic Court Rules
	Proposed Amendments (12 20 22 JC Copy)
	RULE 1. Title.
	RULE 2.   Scope, Purpose and Construction.
	RULE 3. Jurisdiction.
	RULE 4. Definitions.
	RULE 5.  Traffic Violations Bureau.
	RULE 6.  Commencement of Action.
	RULE 7.  Guam Uniform Complaint and Citation.
	RULE 8.  Admission - Contest.
	RULE 9.  Failure to Appear - Order - Default.
	(b) Failure to Answer.  If the respondent fails to appear and answer to the violation within thirty (30) days from the mailing of the Order to Appear a default judgment may be entered against the respondent imposing maximum fines and court costs, plus...
	RULE 10.  Contest - Trial - Evidence.
	RULE 11.  Entry of Judgment. A Judgment may be entered when:
	RULE 12. Dismissal.
	RULE 13.  Repeat Offender - Penalties - Suspension.
	RULE 14.  Retention of Counsel - Entry of Appearance.
	RULE 15.  Appearance of the Attorney General not Required.
	RULE 16.  Notice to Regulatory Agency.
	RULE 17. Amendment.
	RULE 18. Appeal.
	RULE 19.   Enforcement of Judgment.
	RULE 20.  Interim Rules and Effective Date.



